
 

Overview & Scrutiny scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Overview & Scrutiny Commission 

Date: 13 December 2011 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Mitchell (Chair), Janio (Deputy Chair), Brown, 
Follett, Littman, Morgan, K Norman, Powell, 
Rufus and Summers 

Contact: Tom Hook 
Head of Overview & Scrutiny 
29-1110 
tom.hook@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

52. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 1 - 2 

 

53. MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 1 NOVEMBER AND 21 
NOVEMBER 2011 

3 - 12 

 

54. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

55. PUBLIC QUESTIONS/ LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS/REFERRALS 
FROM COMMITTEES/NOTICES OF MOTION REFERRED FROM 
COUNCIL 

 

 

56. INTELLIGENT COMMISSIONING - SUMMARY 

 Report of Strategic Director, Communities to follow. 

 

 Contact Officer: Marian Richards Tel: 29-3846  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

57. THE FUTURE FOR DISCRETIONARY GRANTS 

 Report of Strategic Director, Communities. 

13 - 38 

 Contact Officer: Jonathan Best Tel: 29-1114  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

58. OSC DRAFT WORK PLAN 39 - 42 

 

59. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO CABINET, CABINET MEMBER 
MEETING OR FULL COUNCIL 

 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website. At 
the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
filmed. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 
1988. Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
published policy (Guidance for Employees’ on the BHCC website). 
 
Therefore by entering the meeting room and using the seats around the meeting tables 
you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings for the purpose of web casting and/or Member training. If members 
of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the public gallery 
area. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Head of Scrutiny or the 
designated Scrutiny Support Officer listed on the agenda. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Mary van Beinum, 
Overview & Scrutiny Support Officer, (29-1062, email mary.vanbeinum@brighton-
hove.gov.uk) or email scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Date of Publication - Monday, 5 December 2011 

 
 

 





Agenda Item 52  

 

PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 

A. Declaration of Substitutes 

 
Where a Member of the Commission is unable to attend a meeting for 
whatever reason, a substitute Member (who is not a Cabinet Member) may 
attend and speak and vote in their place for that meeting. Substitutes are not 
allowed on Scrutiny Select Committees or Scrutiny Panels. 
 
The substitute Member shall be a Member of the Council drawn from the 
same political group as the Member who is unable to attend the meeting, and 
must not already be a Member of the Commission. The substitute Member 
must declare themselves as a substitute, and be minuted as such, at the 
beginning of the meeting or as soon as they arrive.  

B. Declarations of Interest 

  
(1)  To seek declarations of any personal or personal & prejudicial interests 

under Part 2 of the Code of Conduct for Members in relation to matters 
on the Agenda.  Members who do declare such interests are required to 
clearly describe the nature of the interest.   

   
(2)    A Member of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission, an Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee or a Select Committee has a prejudicial interest in 
any business at meeting of that Committee where –  

 
(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or 
not) or action taken by the Executive or another of the Council’s 
committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees; 
and 
 
(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken the Member 
was  
 

 (i) a Member of the Executive or that committee, sub-committee, joint 
committee or joint sub-committee and  

 (ii) was present when the decision was made or action taken. 
 
(3)      If the interest is a prejudicial interest, the Code requires the Member 

concerned:-  
(a) to leave the room or chamber where the meeting takes place while 
the item in respect of which the declaration is made is under 
consideration. [There are three exceptions to this rule which are set out 
at paragraph (4) below]. 
(b) not to exercise executive functions in relation to that business and  
(c) not to seek improperly to influence a decision about that business. 

 

1



Agenda Item 52  

 

(4)    The circumstances in which a Member who has declared a prejudicial 
interest is permitted to remain while the item in respect of which the 
interest has been declared is under consideration are:- 

 
(a) for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the item, provided that the public are also 
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a 
statutory right or otherwise, BUT the Member must leave immediately 
after he/she has made the representations, answered the questions, or 
given the evidence, 
 
(b) if the Member has obtained a dispensation from the Standards 
Committee, or 
 
(c) if the Member is the Leader or a Cabinet Member and has been 
required to attend before an Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Sub-
Committee to answer questions. 

C. Declaration of party whip 

 
To seek declarations of the existence and nature of any party whip in relation 
to any matter on the Agenda as set out at paragraph 8 of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Ways of Working. 

D. Exclusion of press and public 

 
To consider whether, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from 
the meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 
 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its heading the 
category under which the information disclosed in the report is confidential 
and therefore not available to the public. 
 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 
 

2



Agenda item 53 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 

4.00PM 1 NOVEMBER 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Mitchell (Chair); Janio (Deputy Chair), Brown, Littman, Morgan, 
K Norman, Powell, Summers, Sykes and MacCafferty 
 

 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
 

39. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
39a Declarations of Substitutes 
39.1 Councillor Ollie Sykes was substituting for Councillor Matt Follett. Councillor MacCafferty 
was substituting for Councillor Sven Rufus.  
 
39b Declarations of Interests 
There were none. 
 
39c Declaration of Party Whip 
There were none. 
 
39d Exclusion of Press and Public 
In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was considered 
whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of the business to be 
transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if members of 
the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in section 100I (1) of the said Act. 
 
39. RESOLVED: That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
40. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 SEPTEMBER 
 
40.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 13 September were agreed and signed by the Chair. 
 
41. CHAIRS COMMUNICATIONS 
 

3



 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 1 NOVEMBER 
2011 

41.1 The Chair Councillor Gill Mitchell said that an item on Health and Well-Being Boards was 
to be reported to 16 November Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee and OSC Members 
would receive a briefing note shortly.  
 
41.2 Councillor Mitchell told the meeting the role of Councillor Disability Spokesperson had 
recently been agreed with the Disabled Workers Forum.  She reminded Members that this was 
a new position, created following the scrutiny panel on staff disabilities, and congratulated 
Councillor Stephanie Powell on her appointment.  
 
41.3 Councillor Powell summarised the many activities and events she was  involved in and 
links with local organisations, aiming to provide a greater voice for disabled people in the city 
as a whole, not only Council employees. Members gave their own experiences of disabilities 
and the importance of disability issues. 
 
 
 
42. PUBLIC QUESTIONS/ LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS/REFERRALS FROM 

COMMITTEES/NOTICES OF MOTION REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 
 
42.1 There were none. 
 
43. BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY PLAN - CONSULTATION ON POLICY OPTIONS 

(EMPLOYMENT) 
 
43.1 The Local Development Team Manager Liz Hobden introduced the report on the Brighton 
& Hove City Plan Consultation on Policy Options Paper (Employment). Alongside other options 
papers, this is out to consultation between 17 October and 2 December. It is based on detailed 
research including close collaboration with the Economic Development Team.   
 
43.2 The Local Development Team Manager summarised the stakeholder events that formed 
part of the consultation. The Brighton & Hove Economic Partnership was holding an evening 
workshop for its Members on the employment options.  
 
43.3 She said the key aim was to safeguard primary office and employment areas and went on 
to answer questions; on industrial sites on the outskirts of the City, housing demand and the 
potential impact of relaxing the rules around changes of use from commercial to residential, 
and provision for infrastructure and leisure & tourism.  
 
43.4 With regard to the age and reliability of the data underpinning the proposals, she stated 
that this was a 20-year plan that would take into account recent changes in the economic 
climate. The City Employment and Skills Plan was launched 3 weeks ago and up to date 
information would be included in the analysis, she said. In reply to further questions the Local 
Development Team Manager said Local Authorities were being asked to provide homes, and 
jobs; and the Housing Delivery Strategy is one of the Policy Options Papers.  An Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan will be updated as part of the wider City Plan and will be subject to consultation 
in March and April of next year. 
 
43.5 The Strategic Director Place said the public sector did not have a direct role in creating 
jobs but could enable and safeguard employment land. Answering a query on recent 
reductions in feed-in tariffs he said this was one example of rapid changes that potentially 

4



 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 1 NOVEMBER 
2011 

could have a serious impact on the local economy; this would need to be considered. In 
relation to the need for leisure sites, he said tourism was being encouraged, outside the scope 
of the City Plan. 
 
43.6 The Local Development Team Manager confirmed that the internal officer advisory group, 
who were involved in the options paper, enabled very close working and exchange of 
information between teams within the council including with the Economic Development Team. 
 
43.7 There would be a continuing opportunity to comment on the City Plan proposals. A report 
would be brought to Members early in 2012 following the options consultation. 
 
43.8 RESOLVED (i) that the report be noted 
(ii) that comments be referred to the Executive 
 
 
44. ANNUAL REPORT ON COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS 
 
44.1 The Standards and Complaints Manager Brian Foley introduced the Annual Report and 
pointed to an overall reduction in the level of complaints. He said there was evidence that 
responses were helping to identify areas for service improvements and teams are actively 
learning from complaints and compliments. Training where necessary for individuals/ teams on 
the use of the formal complaints procedure was one means being used to do this. 
 
44.2 A consistent theme was communication with the customer; individual cases showed that 
there is still scope to improve generally in some areas. 
 
44.3 Members queried the increase in complaints about Housing and Social Inclusion (Table 
paragraph 3.8). The high numbers of people placed in temporary accommodation (flagged red 
in the LAA report) was questioned and whether there may be a link with the changes to 
allocations, where homeless people are now placed in Band C. Further information would be 
provided (report paragraph 3.21 refers).  
 
44.3 The Commission asked about complaints from residents regarding meeting the Decent 
Homes Standard (report paras 3.26, 3.27 and 3.28) and repairs to bathrooms and kitchens in 
particular; also about the number of compliments received which may appear relatively low. 
The Standards and Complaints Manager said a helpful leaflet, produced in conjunction with 
residents was now being used and Members welcomed this. Compliments received from 
routine feedback – from Housing or for example from the Library Service - would generally not 
be recorded by the Complaints Team, he stated. 
  
44.4 It was suggested that Ward Members, who have been contacted by residents on Decent 
Homes, should be able to give their views on the main issues raised and that the matter be 
referred to ASCHOSC. Councillor Ken Norman, ASCHOSC Chair supported the referral and 
the Commission agreed.  An update would be provided for OSC Members. 

  
44.5 The Standards and Complaints Manager answered queries on the pattern of complaints 
about City Infrastructure. He confirmed that complaints during the spells of bad weather in the 
winter 2010-2011 – amounting to hundreds of e-mails during just a few days - had not been 
placed on the complaints system, but they were summarised for the ensuing Scrutiny Review. 
 

5



 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 1 NOVEMBER 
2011 

44.6 The Chair Councillor Gill Mitchell thanked the officers for a thorough, varied and 
interesting report. 
 
44.7 RESOLVED that complaints from residents regarding the Decent Home Standard be 
referred to ASCHOSC. 
 
45. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT; FINAL REPORT 
 
45.1 The Head of Policy and Performance Richard Tuset introduced the final Report on the 
Local Area Agreement (LAA) that, having been in place for 3 years was now formally ended. 
Some data was not yet available and some data was no longer available as a result of changes 
to national arrangements. The LAA included 35 national indicators from 195 in the National 
Indicator Set plus local indicators. It was cross-cutting between public, private services and the 
Community and Voluntary Sector and had been led and managed by the Local Strategic 
Partnership.  
 
45.2 The Head of Policy and Performance referred to the strong joint working between the 
Local Authority, partners and residents across the City. 
 
45.3 He referred to areas of good progress and some areas denoted ‘Red’ such as NI156 
(households in temporary accommodation, affected by change to the definition of ‘temporary,’) 
NI47 (road traffic accident casualties, where progress had been made although targets had not 
been met) and L22 (the number of children in organised school visits, where partners had 
withdrawn but work was on-going.) 
 
45.4 Members discussed the importance of OSC’s role in accountability and performance 
monitoring and the need for clarity on demonstrating the reasons for collecting data plus the 
practical use of the information; for example in evidencing need, planning services, securing 
resources and monitoring outcomes. 
 
45.5 The Head of Policy and Performance set out the move to new performance arrangements 
and told the meeting that an interim report on the City Performance Plan and Organisational 
Health report were due to be reported to the next OSC meeting; the current target- setting 
process was in hand and the Brighton & Hove Local Information System (BHLIS) was a key 
resource for the LSP.  
 
45.6 Explaining the rationale behind data collection, including areas where direct 
measurements are not possible, would be looked at for the future together with different 
approaches to interpretation and analysis such as exception reporting. 
 
45.7 Some Members stressed the need for equalities data, referring in particular to disability 
hate crime; this would be checked. [It was later confirmed that disability hate crime is included 
in the City Performance Plan] 
 
45.8 RESOLVED (i) that OSC notes the report 
(ii) that the City Performance Plan and Organisational Health report be presented to a future 
meeting; to include the rationale and approach to data collection  and reporting. 
 
46. DUAL DIAGNOSIS SCRUTINY REVIEW 
 

6



 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 1 NOVEMBER 
2011 

46.1 A monitoring report on the Dual Diagnosis Scrutiny Review was presented to OSC by two 
representatives of the Brighton & Hove Emerging Clinical Commissioning Group (CGG); 
Locality Transformation Programme Manager, Anne Foster and Commissioning Manager, 
Linda Harrington. 
 
46.2 The Locality Transformation Programme Manager and Commissioning Manager tabled an 
organisation structure chart with contact details and went on to outline the whole system 
approach, introducing the Sussex Partnership-Wide Dual Diagnosis Strategy and 5-year Plan, 
which included clear referral and care pathways; integrated and coordinate care, training and 
research, children’s services, housing and accommodation, mental health custody and court 
diversion pilot. They referred to all the recommendations of the scrutiny review including 
women’s services and parenting/family issues. 
 
46.3 Summarising, they said there had been good progress in some areas and in the 
coordination and development of plans. However more focus on implementation work was now 
needed especially in light of changes in NHS commissioning practices. Progress was needed 
on needs assessment, ensuring changes to delivery of front-line services and re-focussing on 
the multi-agency implementation group, chaired by the Director of Public Health. 
 
46.4 Members discussed the vulnerability of people in need of dual diagnosis support and 
queried the evidence for such high numbers and heard answers to questions on services for 
individuals from outside the City 
 
46.5 On behalf of the Commission the Chair Councillor Gill Mitchell thanked the speakers for a 
thorough report and wished for a successful change to new NHS Commissioning 
arrangements 
 
46.6 RESOLVED that a further implementation update be requested to a future meeting. 
 
47. UPDATE FROM O&S COMMITTEE CHAIRS - CTEOSC 
 
47.1 Councillor Vanessa Brown, Chair of CTEOSC gave an update on the work of the 
Committee, for instance on the  2011 Brighton Festival, Withdean Sports Stadium, an update 
on the recommendations of the Environmental Industries Scrutiny Panel and preparations for 
2012 Olympics.  
 
47.2 Two future Scrutiny Panels had been agreed on Support for the Retail Sector and on 
Access for Older People to cultural activities.  A scrutiny workshop on the draft Libraries 
Annual Plan had been held and a workshop on the Seafront Strategy was being arranged. 
 
47.3 The two Cabinet Members whose portfolios are within the remit of CTEOSC (Cllr Amy 
Kennedy and Cllr Geoffrey Bowden) had outlined their key ambitions and challenges. 
 
47.4 The 24 November CTEOSC meeting would include a presentation from the Arts Council 
and reports on Outdoor Events Policy and Libraries Services. 
 
 
48. OSC DRAFT WORK PLAN AND CONSULTATION TOPICS FOR INFORMATION 
 
48.1 The work plan and consultation topics were noted. 

7



 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 1 NOVEMBER 
2011 

 
49. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO CABINET MEMBER, CABINET OR FULL COUNCIL 
 
49.1 There were none. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 5.40pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

8



Agenda item 53A 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 

5.00PM 21 NOVEMBER 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors; Littman, Morgan, Powell, Rufus, Summers, Cobb, Hyde, Lepper and 
Deane 
 
Also present; Councillor Mitchell; Councillor J Kitcat; Councillor Shanks 

 
PART ONE 

 
50. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
Election of Chair 
50.1 The Head of Scrutiny Tom Hook opened the meeting by welcoming everyone especially 
representatives of Blatchington Mill School and members of the public. Cabinet Members 
Councillors Jason Kitcat and Sue Shanks were also present. 
 
50.2 Councillor Warren Morgan was proposed and seconded unopposed as Chair for today’s 
meeting. 
 
Procedural business 
 
50A  Declarations of Substitutes 
 
Councillor Cobb was substituting for Councillor Janio 
Councillor Deane was substituting for Councillor Follett 
Councillor Hyde was substituting for Councillor K Norman 
Councillor Lepper was substituting for Councillor Mitchell 
 
50B Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Kitcat and Councillor Shanks declared they had a prejudicial interest as Cabinet 
Members involved in the decision and left the room after giving evidence and answering 
questions. 
 
50C Declarations of Party Whip 
 
51. CALL-IN REQUEST; BLATCHINGTON MILL SCHOOL HOCKEY PITCHES 
 
51.1 Councillor Morgan outlined the reasons, procedures and purpose of the meeting; OSC 
was being asked to consider the written request for scrutiny and information presented here, 
and determine whether or not to refer back the 10 November Cabinet decision for re-

9



 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 21 NOVEMBER 
2011 

consideration. OSC did not have the power to make a decision but could make 
recommendations. 
 
51.2 Councillor Gill Mitchell detailed her request for scrutiny. This was a large Council loan; the 
sum being the largest yet advanced to a school in Brighton & Hove, and the business plan had 
not been appended to the Cabinet report when the decision was made. There was no 
suggestion in any way that the school had not been diligent in putting the plan forward, but 
without the business plan it was difficult to estimate the risk and the Local Authority needed to 
protect its interests, and the interests of the school and the community, she said. 
 
51.3 Councillor Mitchell thanked the school and officers for providing the business plan, 
circulated at this meeting. Her questions focussed on two main areas that she felt still needed 
to be clarified; the ability of the school to repay the loan and the extent to which the pitches 
could be put to community use, under various circumstances. 
 
51.4 Referring to the business plan and agenda papers Councillor Mitchell queried issues 
including: the times of day when the pitches would be available for community use; interest 
rates over the 15 years on the capital repayments; any additional taxes or fees related to the 
lease; further details on the sinking fund; whether value added tax was payable; and the 
implications of reducing the number of hours the pitches could be used each week. 
 
51.5 Summarising, Councillor Mitchell said that Cabinet would be able to consider answers to 
these questions, if OSC agreed to refer the decision back. 
 
51.6 Giving reasons for the Cabinet decision Councillor Jason Kitcat said the financial case 
had been carefully looked at and the decision was properly made. The repayments were small 
relative to the size of the school’s overall budget and the regulations and precedents were 
clear.  
 
51.7 This was not a ‘commercial’ venture. The school and local community were working with 
a local sports club; there was overwhelming community support with only few objections. A 
conditional agreement had been in place since May 2010. The school’s case was clearly set 
out and the Cabinet decision supported the school and the needs of the City. In his view a call-
in would be unfair and could be perceived to undermine the position of the school. 
 
51.8 Cabinet Members Councillor Kitcat and Councillor Shanks answered questions about 
the responsibilities of and relationship between a local authority and a local authority school.  
 
51.9 In reply to queries, the Director of Finance Catherine Vaughan stated there was no undue 
cause for concern in this case and explained the principles for dealing with any school financial 
difficulties. Approval for the loan could have been granted In the usual way via Targeted 
Budget Management reporting and it would have been unusual to include the business-plan-
level of detail in the Cabinet report she said.  The loan repayment amounts were a relatively 
modest sum in relation to the school’s overall budget. The finance team had regular contact 
with the school during various iterations of the business plan which had been updated to take 
account of the planning requirements.  
 
51.10 With regard to the terms of the lease, the Head of Law gave an overview of officers’ 
delegated powers and the possible effects of a potential forfeiture. 
 

10



 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 21 NOVEMBER 
2011 

51.11 At the invitation of the Chair, the Head Teacher of Blatchington Mill School Janet Felkin 
spoke about the business plan and reassured Members that it had undergone close scrutiny. 
The wide-ranging skills of the school’s finance committee had been put to good use on this 
important decision that the governors felt strongly about. The existing field could not be used 
when it was raining and the school wanted a world class facility for the students that would also 
provide better sports facilities both in and out of school time.  
 
51.12 As Chair of Local Secondary Schools group, the Head Teacher said she was aiming to 
provide improved facilities for all schools across the City. The plan opened up a number of 
sports for the first time, enabling a wider range of facilities that could be used during wet 
weather. 
 
51.13 Councillor Kitcat and Councillor Shanks left the room while the Commission discussed 
the call-in request. Some Members were satisfied with replies given here to the points raised 
while others said they were still concerned about the level of information available when the 
decision was made. 
 
51.14 On the general matter of the amount of detail required, it was noted that in decision-
making, Members often asked for and were given, further information on any issue either 
before the report was published or during consideration of the item. 
 
51.15 Following a vote the Commission agreed not to refer the decision back to Cabinet. 
 
51.16 RESOLVED that the decision be not referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration. 
 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 6.00pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

11



12



OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

Agenda Item 57 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: The Future for Discretionary Grants 2012-13 & 
Beyond 

Date of Meeting: Overview & Scrutiny Commission 13 December 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Communities 

Contact Officer: Name: Jonathan Best Tel: 29-1114 

 Email: jonathan.best@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2011 – 2015 sets out the priorities of tackling 

inequality, creating a more sustainable city and engaging people who live & work 
in the city. This includes support for a resilient and vibrant community & voluntary 
sector. 

 
1.2 The Council’s Equality & Inclusion Policy 2008 – 2011 is currently being revised 

to support the Corporate Plan objectives and ensure that the Council meets its 
statutory obligations within the Equality Act 2010. The role of community & 
voluntary sector organisations is central in supporting the most vulnerable and 
disadvantaged people in the city. 

 
1.3 The Council’s Members Advisory Group is the cross-party group of councillors 

which provides challenge and support to the Cabinet in relation to the 
Discretionary Grants Programme. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1   That members recognise the role of the grants programme in underpinning the 

council’s working relationship with, and sustainable success of, Brighton and 
Hove’s third sector organisations. 

 
2.2 That members provide comment and feedback to Cabinet on the proposed 

vision, criteria and process for the Three-Year Strategic Grants 2013-16 and the 
Annual Grants 2012-13. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 Brighton & Hove City Council’s (BHCC) Discretionary Grants Programme 

currently invests approx £1.6M pa in the city’s Third Sector (community groups, 
voluntary organisations & not-for-profit social enterprise). 

 
3.2   Administered by the council’s Communities & Equality Team the programme 

supported over 200 organisations in 2010-11 and has already supported over 
180 organisations in 2011-12. 

13



 
3.1 Overview & Scrutiny Commission (OSC) 27 November 2009 considered 

decisions made by Cabinet as part of the Three Year Strategic Grants 
Programme 2010-13 and gave unanimous approval. 

 
3.2  OSC specifically commended the rigour of process, scope of consultation and 

robust reporting: At this time OSC also requested some additional work in 
supporting an unsuccessful applicant and this was actioned with the delivery of 
an alternative support package. 

 
3.3 Finally OSC asked that they be briefed on “policy and methodology of Three 

Year Grants in advance of the next Three Year Grant process.”  
 
3.4   The cross-party Member’s Advisory Group for Grants (MAG) was recently asked 

to consider proposals for the next application and decision making process 2013-
16. 

 
3.5 MAG met on 22 November 2011 and acknowledged and commended 

established process and agreed the draft vision and priorities as attached as 
Appendix 1. 

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The National Association for Voluntary & Community Action (NAVCA) describes 

why local grant aid is vital for a healthy voluntary and community sector and 
thriving local communities: 

 
“For some organisations only grants will enable them to achieve outcomes that 
matter for local people.  
 
A grant: 

• Is a stepping stone and initial lifeline for a small organisation just starting 

• Is in keeping with the voluntary ethos. It won’t discourage volunteers from 
taking part, who might otherwise not want to volunteer to deliver services 
defined by the local authority 

• Can create opportunities. It enables groups to take a risk and to innovate 
‘to have a good idea and be able to try out something new’ 

• Can lever extra support  
‘local people might be involved through grant panels and decision making or 
private donors (businesses and individuals)’ 

• Allows organisations to work with the least advantaged in society from 
whom raising an income is next to impossible 

• Can be infinitely flexible and often made at low cost, proportionate to the 
size of group it is supporting. 

• Builds and strengthens local linkages and relationships through what can 
be a less formal and more trust-based funding relationship 

• Can enable the organisation to meet the needs of the community and stay 
close to its missions and values, if it doesn’t need to adapt to meet the 
requirements of a particular contract” 

 
“Sustaining Grants” NAVCA 2007, p.3, 4 
 

14



4.2 Brighton & Hove Community & Voluntary Sector Forum have been supporting the 
Council in the development of the Intelligent Commissioning process and 
approach. In their briefing document in August 2011 they underlined the crucial 
role of an effective grants programme within Intelligent Commissioning.  

 
4.3 They make the argument for both effective grants programmes and contracting 

arrangements to achieve the citywide outcomes. 
 

4.4   Value 
 
An effective and efficient discretionary grants programme delivered with quality 
clearly represents good value in terms of: 
 

- Innovation  
- Flexibility  
- Leverage  
- Accessibility  
- Reputation Building 
- Business Planning  
 
4.5  Grants are not subject to VAT which means the full value of the investment can 

be realised and bring in more money. For example the council’s Arts Partnership 
Award grants levered almost £700,000 into the city in 2010-11 (over fourteen 
times the original grant investment). 

 
4.6  Grants add value to a recipient organisation, as well as attracting match funding 

often underpinning longer term business planning and building reputation across 
communities. The value of third sector endeavour in Brighton & Hove was 
estimated at over £95M pa. and this does not factor the value to volunteers & 
beneficiaries in terms of engaging and empowering active citizenship. So grants 
can provide the platform for those big commissions. 

 
4.7  Yet grants are also vital to smaller organisations. Those very organisations who 

may find it difficult to access other funding streams but make an established and 
much valued contribution to well being in neighbourhoods and cohesion across 
the city’s diverse communities. Grant aid invests in their unique capacity to find 
imaginative and innovative solutions to local need.  

 
 
5 PROPOSED GRANTS PROCESS, VISION & CRITERIA 
 
5.1 The current and proposed grants process as set out in Appendix 2 has earned 

national recognition from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and the 
Directory of Social Change for its openness and accountability. It has been 
audited regularly by the council’s Internal Audit and proven to be rigorous and 
consistent. 

 
5.2 The council’s discretionary grants programme 2010-13 currently benefits from 

specialist input by officers across delivery & commissioning units to ensure that 
decision making meets cross-council objectives and fit with specialist activity. 

 

15



5.3 It also benefits from the cross-party Members Advisory Group which enables 
dialogue with the Lead Cabinet Member and officers. 

 
5.4 There is no proposal to change the portfolio of grant schemes that comprise the 

Council’s wider grants programme of Three Year Strategic Grants accompanied 
by Annual Grants for smaller groups alongside specialist projects such as 
community festivals, culture and environmental sustainability 

 
5.5 There is however a genuine opportunity to re-align eligibility criteria to fully reflect 

city outcomes, corporate priorities and our intelligent commissioning approach to 
working with partner providers as set out in Appendix 1. 

 
6. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
6.1 Financial Implications: 
 
The full impact in terms of Financial Implications will be considered within the emerging 
2012-13 budget strategy  
 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Michelle Herrington Date: 1/12/11 
 
6.2 Legal Implications: 
 
The report recommends continuation of the discretionary grants programme 2013-16 
with the current application procedure, process and delivery mechanism maintained 
alongside a new Three-Year Strategic & Annual Grants (inc. 2012-13) Application and 
Decision-Making Timetable.  
 
It also recommends adopting a revised vision for the discretionary grants programme, 
accompanied by updated eligibility criteria which reflect corporate priorities.  
 
This is considered to be a reasonable legal approach. 
 
 Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce  Date: 23/11/11 
 
6.3 Equalities Implications 
 
BHCC discretionary grants programme is one of the mechanisms through which the 
council implements its equality aims in relation to communities in the city. It provides 
support to diverse, often small and seldom heard, community groups based on their 
own identification of needs and goals. 
 
Actions to promote equalities issues are prioritised in the vision and criteria for grant aid 
as outlined above. In addition the specialist grant schemes identified in Appendix 3 
address key council strategies in this regard. 
 
Recommendations build on previous Equality Impact Assessments and the equalities 
principles underpinning the proposed grants programme. Working with stakeholders an 
EIA will support and influence the practical implementation of the programme and wider 
service.   
 
6.4 Sustainability Implications: 

16



 
Actions to promote sustainability issues are prioritised in the vision & criteria for grant 
aid as outlined above.  
 
In addition the specialist grant schemes identified at Appendix 3 address key council 
strategies in this regard. 
 
6.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
Actions to address crime & disorder issues are prioritised in the vision & criteria for 
grant aid as outlined above.  
 
In addition the specialist grant schemes identified at Appendix 3 promote key council 
strategies in this regard. 
  
6.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications: 
 
Promotion of opportunity is prioritised in the vision & criteria for grant aid outlined above. 
Provision of mechanisms for the appropriate management of associated risk are 
acknowledged & addressed in the recommendations made.  

 
Risks attached to discontinuing the programme are outlined in this report.  
 
Provision of a discretionary grants programme in future years will be essential, not only 
for the council’s continuing good working relations with a thriving third sector but also its 
capacity to deliver on corporate commitments and strategic priorities throughout the 
period. 
 
6.7      Public Health Implications: 
  
Actions to address public health issues are prioritised in the vision & criteria for grant aid 
as outlined above.  
 
In addition the specialist grant schemes identified at Appendix 3 promote key council 
strategies in this regard. 
 
6.8 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 

 Recommendations made support a number of council priorities as outlined.  
 
 This includes:  

• Our Corporate Plan 2011-15 

• “Creating a City of Opportunities”: B&H Strategic Partnership - A Sustainable 
Community Strategy for Brighton & Hove 

 
7. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
 The options to discontinue the grants programme or to significantly alter the 

process have been addressed in the content of this report. 
 
8. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

17



 The recommendations recognise that provision of a discretionary grants 
programme in future years will be essential, not only for the council’s continuing 
good working relations with a thriving third sector but also its capacity to deliver 
on corporate commitments and strategic priorities throughout the period. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Grants 2013-16: Vision, Criteria & Practical Examples (inc Annual Grants 2012-13) 
 
2. Grants process for decision making 
 
3. Current & recent grant commitments: 

• Three Year Strategic Grants 2010-13 

• Annual Grants 2010-11 

• Annual Grants rounds 1, 2 & 3 2011-12 
 

 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. n/a  
 
Background Documents 
 
1. B&H Community & Voluntary Sector Forum Briefing 13 Update August 2011 
 
2. “Sustaining Grants” National Association for Voluntary & Community Action 2007 
 

3. “Taking Account”: B&H Social & Economic Audit September 2008 
 

18



 

 

Agenda Item 57  

Appendix 1 

 
 

Brighton & Hove Discretionary Grant Programme 2013-16 

Three-Year Strategic & Annual Grants (inc. 2012-13) 

Vision, Criteria & Practical Examples 
 

 

Vision 
 

The new vision for Brighton & Hove City Council is about: 

 

“Supporting a thriving third sector that promotes engagement and 

equality by encouraging cohesive communities to have active voices” 

 

The vision is directly derived from “Our Corporate Plan 2011-15” & 

“Creating a City of Opportunities: a sustainable community strategy for 

Brighton & Hove” and recognises the third sector’s capacity to design & 

deliver high quality services efficiently & effectively. 

 

o Economic & Social Audit of the CV sector in B&H: 2008  

 

As such it embeds value for money at the earliest stage of grant giving. In 

addition the vision encompasses key cross-cutting themes for council 

around promotion of citizen participation through active volunteering 

 

o “Joining the Dots” a Triple Impact Strategy 2010-15 

 

 

The vision is defined by established & emerging priorities in terms of 

engagement & equality. 

 

o “BHCC Equality & Social Inclusion Policy 2012” early draft 

o “Community Engagement Framework” 2009 

 

The vision complements the work of the City Engagement Partnership 

(SCP) and the Community Development Strategy for Brighton & Hove 

(emerging) and therefore ensures new discretionary grant eligibility 

criteria reflect city outcomes, corporate priorities and our intelligent 

commissioning approach. 

 

Thus the work / activities of all grant recipients will address council’s 

corporate plan whilst generating data of direct relevance to our 

commissioners.  

 

19



 

 

Similarly the criteria will help those grant recipients generate matching 

data to maximise any future commissioning opportunities whilst 

maintaining the accessibility & openness for which our grants service is 

acknowledged. 

 

 

 

 

 

Eligibility Criteria & Practical Examples 
 
Successful grant applications must contribute towards at least one of the four 

criteria: 

 

(1) Strengthening Communities and Involving People 
 

Tackling Inequality, Working to Create a Fairer City  

& Engaging more Groups across the City 

 
o Pre-school / out of school activities, adventure pursuits for teenagers, 

health education & counselling support for young people 

o Social / support groups for communities of interest or identity eg. Black & 

minority ethnic, Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual & Transgender, younger, older or 

disabled people etc 

o Community associations, centres & ‘anchors’ 

o Advice services & centres  

 

 

(2) Improving Well-Being & Promoting Learning 

 
Culture & Leisure Opportunities for All, Promoting Healthy Lifestyles  

& Supporting Vulnerable People 

 

o Community arts projects such as audience development workshops or 

performances  

o Sports clubs, activity / recreational initiatives or social groups 

o Local history & heritage initiatives eg photo /oral archive, community 

museums / libraries etc 

o Not-for-profit social / creative enterprise etc  

o Support for residents with physical or mental health difficulties 

o Developing the skills of residents to enhance their employment prospects 

eg. volunteer training programmes or helping service users acquire new 

competencies or knowledge 

 
 

(3) Reducing Crime and Improving Safety 

 
Encouraging ‘responsibility’… delivering effective & accessible early 

interventions… involving communities in reducing crime & antisocial 

behaviour 
 

20



 

 

o Responsible parenting, education or crime prevention initiatives 

o Provision of diversionary activities for those at risk of offending 

o Tackling domestic violence / substance misuse 

o Child protection awareness, supporting victims of crime etc  

 

 

(4) Enhancing the Environment 

 
Creating a more Sustainable City, Living within Environmental Limits  

& Promoting Sustainable Transport  

 
o Improving the built or natural environment  

o Recycling / re-use projects, green fuel / affordable transport initiatives 

o Conservation, tree planting & seed banks, community gardens  

o Raising awareness about local and healthy food 

o Not-for-profit social / environmental enterprise etc  

21



22



Agenda Item 57  
Appendix 2  

 

Process for Decision Making: 
Three Year Strategic & Annual Grants 
 
“OSC 27 November 2009 specifically commended the rigour of process, scope of 
consultation and robust reporting… MAG met on 22 November 2011 and 
acknowledged and commended established process” 

 
1) Brighton & Hove City Council delivers an open and accountable grants 
programme. 
 
2) Thus all applicants complete an associated application form documenting: 

• Governance Arrangements (not-for-profit) 

• Accounts / Finances 

• Aims & Objects 

• Organisational Capacity & Scope 

• Evidence of Need 

• Proposed Outcome Measures 

• Commitment to Equality & Inclusion 
 
3) The application form provides information & guidance on the vision for 
grants & associated eligibility criteria (please see Appendix 1). This means all 
applicants must ensure they demonstrate how their service / activities are of 
value to councillors, commissioners & local people by addressing identified 
city outcomes & corporate priorities. 
 
4) On receipt, all applications are subject to an initial technical appraisal by 
the Communities & Equality Team. This ensures only eligible organisations 
progress to a full appraisal. 
 
5) The Team then consults with specialist officers across delivery & 
commissioning units to ensure the proposals complement service objectives. 
 
6) A final Narrative Report is then written describing the applicant 
organisation, its work & making a recommendation around grant. The report 
also provides an opportunity to outline any specific conditions attached to the 
recommendation. 
 
7) The report is considered on behalf of Cabinet by the Lead Member for 
Communities, Equality & Public Protection alongside the council’s 
Commissioner: Communities & Equality. In addition all recommendations for 
grant over £3,000 are provided to the cross-party Members Advisory Group 
(MAG) for comment. 
 
nb. Quarterly meetings for MAG are proposed for 2012-13 to assist in this 
regard & agreed recommendations for allocation of Three Year Strategic 
Grant 2013-16 will also be subject to full Cabinet reporting 

23



 
8) Upon decision the report & its recommendation / rationale is shared with 
the associated applicant accompanied by standard conditions of funding. 
 
9) Once both standard & any specific conditions (including a commitment to 
evaluate use of grant by end of financial year) are met payment is authorised 
by the Grants Officer / Commissioner and released. 
 
10) A quarterly All Councillor Report is circulated documenting all grant 
allocations made for that period. Simultaneously the council’s website is 
updated for colleagues & external partners. 
 
11) Grants vary from a few hundred pounds up to £100,000. It is therefore 
appropriate that the application, appraisal & subsequent evaluation reporting 
requirements are commensurate to the size of grant and scope of recipient. 
 
12) There is one Outline Bid deadline every three years for Three Year 
Strategic Grant applicants. Those applicants prioritised through the above 
process are invited to submit a substantially more detailed Full Bid 
application. Others are offered an alternative support package including 
consideration for Annual Grant and wider fundraising support. 
 
nb. Full Bid applications will again be subject to the above process for 
decision making 
 
13) There are four quarterly deadlines for Annual Grant applicants and those 
unsuccessful, but eligible for future consideration, supported in submitting a 
revised bid later in that financial year. 

24



����������	�
���
 �����
�
��
�������


���
����

�������
� �������

��

�	��
�� �������

����	�
��
� 

�	������! ��"����

����	���
#	�� 
$�	%
�� �������

&��
�
�� �������

&'(
)
���
*
����
� �+�����

&�,

-	�
)�.
 �������

&���,
/
0��	���!
1� ���
�	������!
$����
�� �� �2����

&���,
���
0��	���!
1� ���
#	���
$
	��
3�
$�	%
�� ��"����

&��� �	�
/
'	�

4������	�
$�	%
�� �"����

&��� �	�
$
��

/
1����	��
��
�
���
 �"����

&�������,
���
�
$
	��
3�
$�	%
��
54�����6 �2����

&����
��
�	������!
$����
�� �� ��"����

���
��3
�
���

.	�
&��� �	�
/
'	�
 �������

���	��
� �������

�17$
� ��
�

�
���
 �"����

���
���! �������

����8
��
�����

&��
�� ��������

�	������!
���
9	������!
*
��	�
-	��� ��+����

�	��
���	�

�	������!
�
���
 �������

��
���
���	�
51���
*���
:6 �������

1���!
� ��� 		�
$�	%
�� �2����

1:������
 �������

-������ �������

-��
� ��

5���!
;��

�	������!
$�	%
���6
 �������

-
�
����	�
	.
7�����
�
$
	��
 �������

-
������
-����
 �������

-����
&��

7�!
�
���

5&'(6 �������

-		�
0���
��
$����
�� ��
)�� �<����

-��
��
����	�
.	�
� ����
� �������

'����
�	�
/
=�	��
$�	%
�� �"����

>
��� 
�	������!
-	������	� ������

=	�
���
$�	�����	��
)�� �������

);&(
*���� �	��� ��2����

)�� � 	��

����
���
(�������
)�� �"����

0
�����	�
*
����
 �"����

0��� ��"����

0	�
!
�����

���
�	������!
*���	�� �������

0	����
&���,
/
0�:
�
$��
����

-����!
;�	�� ��+����

0	���
�		��
�
�� �	�� 		�
(���� �������

�
�� �	�� 		�
���

*� 
�

54��
���6 ��"����

����� �������

�..
( 

-
��

(���� �������

$	
��
�	��
�
�	������!
*	��
�! �"����

?�

�*���,
&		,� �"����

@A4A*A1 �B"����

@
�	���

�
���

5&'*C1(6 �B�����

*��

*,! ��"����

*	�
��
�
7�!
�
���
 �"����

*	�� 
1���
7���
 ��"����

*�
�,
��� �������

*�
����� �������

*�
)�,
3�
�����

*
����
 �2����

*�	�	�
�
54�����6 �������

*�����	��3
�
��	�, �������

*���
:
4��
���
����
*
����
� �2����

(���
�����
� ����
�
���
#	���
$
	��
3�
$�	%
�� �������

( 

7
���
#	�� 
$�	%
��
5.	��
��!
C		�����
��
#	�� 
 �������

( �
� 	��
5&'(6 �������

(����
.	�
7
�
�	����
�	�������
� �������

��
���	!
�
�
���

-�����
�
$�	%
�� �D�����

9	����

�
�
���

54��
���6 �������

C ��
 ��,
4�� �+����

C	�
�3�
�
���
 �������

C	�,���
(	�
� 
�
$�	%
�� ��<����

#	���
$
	��
3�
�
���

54�����6 ��B����

#	�� 
�����

�
���

5'	�

#0��6 ��"����

#	�� 
���
*�	��
$�	%
��
5'	�

#0��6 �������

�����
�
��
������� ����DD����

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����E
( �


#
��
*����
���
;�����
�������


25



4��
: ����������	� $�	%
�� �����

���������	��
��
� �
���������������
����� ����
�������������	��� ��������� 
��!�������!��� "���
��#
��������� ��!���������$���%���������
& '���
�����(��	 )��	���������*��� ����
� �+��������
���� ,
��������-�%������� ����
� �+�)������������
���� �
��������������.*���� '���
� ���	������!�+�*�� ���/�+������ �
����������� ����
� ���	����)����*���0�
�	��	��� 1�*������������������ '���
� ���	����2�*���3� 4
����)����*������������� 5��
� ���	����4����6������	��� ���������+��� ����
� ���	�����
������ 2
 �����	�*���
����������� "���
� ���	���7�+�*��1����������	������
�&������� �!����������������
����������� "��
��	�����������&�����
& �
���������������������.*���� "���
�����/��������
������	�������	����
& ������8����������9�� ����
����!��������!���������������� ����
�����-������ ���!� ����
�����
������
������1����3� �
����������� ����
��������� �
���������������#
������ '���
�)��%��!�)�������3� 4�/��8�$��	��������������� "���
�
���.�!�����4��$����������:
;.;4;�;< �
��������������!�����*���� "���
�
����4����������!
��������3� ��!����������$���!���=�4�!�� ���
�+�����������!�9�����4
�����
��
���� �
����������� "���
�+�������������
���������������� ����
�������������
����������� >���
�+������!����0����
��
� �
����������� ����
�9����/� �
����������/��������
�����.*���� '���
�9������!*���������� �
����������� ?��
�9���������
���������������� �
������������(��������� ����
�2�*�����/ @����$��������*������ "���
�2
��	�������*� �
����������� >AB�
�4�!�+������ �������.*�������������� '���
�4��������!�
������������
& �
���������������
&������ "���
�41)��	�� ������������������� �
����������� ����
�4�!���������������
����-��%��/ �
����������� ����
�4�
�������&� �����!��	��@����$��
��
� �
���������������#
������ ���
�-�%�+���C��� ��!���������D����
&E��
�����������7� ����
�-���	�2���������
���������������� ����
�������%����������!������ '���
������	����2���������������� �
��������������!�*�������� '���
��������2����� ���	��������������� �
��������������!���!����!����� "���
����*�����
�!� �
��	�����(�&������������
��� B5�
���
�	�+�%/���������������!���������������� F�������F�����
�������������� ����
��
!���������&�������/����.�!���������������� �
���������������
����� "���
��
!������@�������!��	��!����
��
� �
����������� "���
��	������
�����G��� ������������(����9�� '���
��	��
��2�
��
� �
&�������4��
����
��������������� �?��
��	��H
������������� ���/�����	����	�&������(���&��� '?��
��	��9��&�����
& 4
����
��
�����������.!
������ ����
��	��4��$��-��%��/ �
����������� ����
��	������� ������*�����%��/�����*���� '���
��	��!�.����������4�!�� ����@��/�	��� ����
�@	���	�%/�@�������
�����)� �
��������������-�%�9�� ����
�

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����
7����
��	���!
������
;�����
$�	�����

�������

;�����
�	
*����
�
����������	��

�����
�
�	����
��
��
�
/
D �����2<�

26



����������	� )
�
���
 �����

��������(�1�����
� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< ����

 ��!&�C� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< ����
 ���	���������*����������������3� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���

 ���	����.�����4
����)����*�� .�����)���&���� '���

 ���	�����	���� ������� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< >���

����
��� �
����������;-;1; "���
1���&����������������� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���
1������	��/�����/ �������
�����.�����!�:��.< 5���

)���	���4��������2�! �������
�����.�����!�:��.< A���

4�*�������' �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���

-�%�4
���� ���	��� ����)�
�!����� "��

-��	���������	������2�! �������
�����.�����!�:��.< ����

�������������!
��������3� �%�!��	�.�&���� ���
������(��	����� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< >���

��
�!%�*���)����*�� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< "���
�������������	����� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< ����
8��������!��������)�����������G��� 
������)�
�!����� >��

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����
7����
��	���!
������
;�����
$�	�����

�������

����
$����
�� ��
������

�����
�
�	����
��
��
�
/
D �D+����

27



�	�
 -
������ )	�����! �����

- �������(��� �*��!��������
���� �
�����)
��1���'��� B��

- ����1�((����������.#
�� �������@���!�)����*�� ����

��3  �+�)�!���������(�1���&��!������� 3�������������1���1���&��!������� ����
-  �������.����������
���������������� -���	&�
�	��!�)����*�� 5��

-  �
��%��/�����
�����)����*���
��
� -���	&�
�	��!�����&������ ����

��3 �.1���	������������ �	������-�%�0��� ����

- ���(����4������������%�������
������������� -���	&�
�	��!�����&������ ����
- ���!��������
�����)����*�� -���	&�
�	��!�����&������ A��

- )����!���(�������$��@����
��!��� �������)����*�� ����

- +�����������9���������
�����)����*�� -���	&�
�	��!�����&������ ����

��3 3�����������
����������� -����C��
��
����)����*�� ����
- ��
�!�+����������� ���	�����*������������������� ����

- �	��.���	�������/�
��
� ���������!����������	�����/ ����
- @��������!����2���������������� ����!����0�
�	�)����*�� �>A�

�����
�
�	����
��
��
�
/
D ��2�DD�

&��� �	�
/
'	�

7����
��	���!
;�����
$�	�����

�������

�	������!
-
������
;�����

�-�I�-���	&�
�	��!� ���!

��3�I�����
������(�3�������

28



����������	� $�	%
�� �����

�(������)����	�����/��������
���� .�*��������������(������ B"�
 �+�)��!���������	�� F+��*���FE� �+�
���
��%��� '���
 �+���������
��!������
��
� ����������4���������������� 5��
 ���	������+�*����E����3� .*�������.������������������� ����
 �����������
���������������
��
� ����
��������!�������#
������ ����

 �
��%��/���!���������-���	&�
�	��!�  �
��%��/����!����!����� ���� '���

)����!���(� �*��!����1�%� �
������������������� ����
)����!���(�@����	��� ������*��������������� ?��

��!���������
���������
�����
�� ���G����4������������������� '>B�
+�������������
���������������� ����
�����
��!������G��� '���
+���*����������(����
������&���2�*��� ����
�����+�����
��
������G��� ���
2�%����&�����
�� .���	�	�����.��������+�
��� '���

4������.�*�������������
�� F2�����������������F����G��� '���
4�
�������&�)������
��!�����@��!��(�����G��� @��!���!�)���������1�� �'A�

-�%������ �
��	�����(���%��������������� ?��
�������!������� ���� �
����������� ����

�������������
�����
��
� 4������������(���������������� ����

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����
7����
��	���!
������
;�����
$�	�����

�������

1����	��
����
*������������!
;�����

�����
�
�	����
��
��
�
/
D ��B���"

29



����������	� $�	%
�� �����

 ���	������+�*������/��
� F@	�������1�F�!���&����������%������ '���

 ���	����@����$�������� @����$�����*���������������-��%��/ ����
3�������������1��E�@����D�������� ����&�������.*������������� "���

�����	����2��������������� ���������������1�*�������� '���
��
���(���1�*������������
������ .#
��������.������������������� "���

6��������� ����&������
&�9���������� ����

�����
�
�	����
��
��
�
/
D ��+�"��

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����
7����
��	���!
������
;�����
$�	�����

�������

&�������
4�������

����������	��
;�����

30



����������	� $�	%
�� �����

���
��������(�������0����	�����&�����
��� ��	�����
��������%��������(������� >���

 ���	���� 
��!������/%��!� 4�������������
����������� 5��

 ���	����1�����������
����
���� ����%�!��4����������� '���

��������(�.J��������!�.�!��� �������.*��������
����� 5��

)������)�������)����
�!�����$� �
��	�����(���������9�� ���

)����!���(������!��%���	
��	 �
��	�����(������ ����

)����!���(��	����������� ���(������������.*��� ���


���.�!�����4��D��������� �31��4��������������� ����


��!�����!��� .J������������ ����

+�*�����/�������)� ����	��������� ���

H
&�������
���������������������� �������.*��������
����� ���

9��������������������!���������������� �
����������������� ���
9���������-�%�.
�����������������*�  4.�������*��@��/�	��� ���

4���������
�����
& 
��!���(
����
���(�����
�����! ���

4�J�!� ����������	������
��
� ���(����������������� ���

��
�	��������!������
�����
��
� �
����������� "��

��������������*������������� �
��	�����(�.#
������ ���

�	��)����!����
�������
& ��!���������$��.*������������� B��
�	�����	��!�����������
& �	�����������������������.*���� ����
�	��0�
���+���*������ +���*����������)����*�� ���

�	�����������!������ ��&������������������� B��

@������	�����!���������������� �
����������������� ���
@��!���(��)��/��� ������.��	��� @��/��!�����*�������� '��

�����
�
�	����
��
��
�
/
D ��B�2��

�����������	�
����
���������

31



����������	� �������!
7
���� �����

 �+� 
�������������!��
��
� )������������!� "��

�	��������$�������E� ���	������+�*� 3�(���������������������/ "��

4��!���� ���	������+�*����4��!�
� ������� 
���������!�������/ >��

���������0�
�	����G��� 0�
���������$����(������� >'�

����&�%��	��
� )������������!� "��

 �+�2
 ���%���	&���! )������������!� "��

 ���	����@����D�������� @����$�����(������������ "���
�	��/'�	��/� ����������2�����1�������
& 1�������&���
��������!� "��

 ���	����
���4��D���	��
� )������������!��=�������������/ "��

)�!���������(�1���&��!������� ������������������/ ����

 ���	�����	������
��
� )������������!� "��

2
��	�������*� ����!��������
�������(K� "��

����&��	  4.����(�������������������/ '>��

�B�<+"

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����
7����
��	���!
;�����
$�	�����

�������

$���

;�����
����

�����
�
����

32



����������	� $�	%
�� �����

������@��!�	���@��!���(��)��/ 0�
���������$������*����� "��

�#
��������� ��!���������$���%������� '���

 ���+��������������(�
��&��������C��� ���G����2�
��	���.*����� '���

 ��������4
�����	��������������3� )
�!�������������������� ����

 ���	������+�*���������
���� F�����1����F����
&������������ ����
 ���	������+�*�� ���/�+������ �
����������� "A��

 ���	������+�*���	������������� �����	�����G������
���
&������ "���
 ���	������+�*��)������������
���� �
��������������.*����� "���

 ���	�����������&������������
& ����	������4������������������ ����
 �����	��	�����������	�!�J������������ 2���
������������������*����� "���
�	�����������&�����
& �
�����������������
��������� "���
����
������
������1����3� �
����������� ����

���.�!�����4��$��������� �
������������������*����� ����

����4������ �
������������������
�������!�� ���
+���������)
��(���)������� )�������
��������������������� "���

3�����������
����������� �
�����������7�.*��������
����� ����

H���������
& ��!���@����$������*����� "���

9����!������ 1���&��!��	��!���D������*����� '���
9����/���
������������ �
����������� '���
9�!C��� �	��!���$��������������� ����

9������!*���������� �
����������� ?��
9���������
���������������� ����
�������������
����������� ����

2
��	�������*� +36=�31���
������
��
������� '5'"
4�!�+������ ��!���������$������*����� �B��

41)E�$�	�� ��������������������� �+$ �
����������� ����
4�!���������������
�����-��%��/ �
��������������.*���� "���
4�����	�(����9���	�� ����
�����9���	���������8� '���
����������
�������� ���	������+�*� �
��������.*�������������� "���

��!�����*��& �
��������������2
 �����G��� "���
��(��J��������!��� @������
��!�1���� ���

�������2����� ���	��������������� ���G�������.*�������������� "���

�
!������������������������ �
����������� "���

�
!������@��������	��!����
��
� ��������
��������.!
������ "���

�
���J�����	�������	����� ���(����������������� "���
��������������*������
���� 4������+����	��
���������G��� '���

��
��	������
��
� �����(���1���&��!������� ����

���6�������-�� �
����������� ����

6�*������2�! 0�
���������$��������+����	��.����� ����

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����
7����
��	���!
������
;�����
$�	�����

�������

;�����
�	
*����
�
����������	��

�2��2��(	���
�����
�
��
���	�
�
����

33



����������	� )
�
���
 @
F�
�������

 ��!&�C� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���

 ���'��
�	 �������
�����.�����!�:��.< ���

 ���	����.�����4
����)����*�� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���

 ���	�����	����)����� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< >���

��������!�@��/� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< 'A��

+����2�*�������2�! �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���

+�!������/����	������������� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���

-��	���������	������2�! �������
�����.�����!�:��.< >���

�����4
��� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< �"��

�������������G������3� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< >���

�	����J� ���	����2�! �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���

������(��	������������� �������
�����.�����!�:��.< ����

�	��)
�
������8�%�������2�! �������
�����.�����!�:��.< '���

6�!����
& �������
�����.�����!�:��.< ����

(	���
�����
�
��
���	�
�
���� ��<�<��

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����
7����
��	���!
������
;�����
$�	�����

�������

����
$����
�� ��
������

34



4��
:�	�
 -
������ )	�����! @
F�
�������

- ����1�((����������.#
�� �������@���!�)����*�� ����

-  �����.����������!���������������� )������)
��1�� ���

��3  ���	����4�������������������� L����D��
��
����)����*�� �'��

-  �
��%��/�����
�����)����*���
��
� -���	&�
�	��!�����&������ ����

- ���(����4������������%�������
������������� -���	&�
�	��!�)����*�� ����

- .���	�������/�
��
� ������������������	�����/ ����

- )����!���(����������@����
��!��� ����&��������(������� ����

- )����!���(�@�����������/�����/ M����	(���N�'��� �'��

- +�����������9���������
�����)����*�� -���	&�
�	��!�����&������ ����

- +���*���1�������������� +���*���1���.*��� ����

- +������&
������/��*��
�������������� -���	&�
�	��!�����&������ ����

- 9�����%�������*�������������� -���	&�
�	��!�)����*�� ����

- -���	�2���������
���������������� �
�����)��� ���

- ��!� ���������������
���������������� �
����������1�� >>�

- �������!������
�����)��
� �������!��M4���(
�N�1�� ����

- �������!����� ������������� M��
�������-��	�N�.*��� ����

- ��
�!�+����������� -���	&�
�	��!�����&������ ����

��3 �
���J�1���2���
! H�%��	�����
���������&������ ����

��3 @��������!����2���������������� ����!����0�
�	�)����*�� �>�?

(	���
�����
�
��
���	�
�
���� ����DD<

&��� �	�
/
'	�

7����
��	���!
;�����
$�	�����

�������

�	������!
-
������
;�����

�-�I�-���	&�
�	��!� ���!

��3�I�����
������(�3�������

35



����������	� $�	%
�� �����

 ���+�)�������!�����������
��
� �
&������7�������������@�&���� '>'A

 �*��!��������
�����
��!�� +�����
��
�����+����	��.������ '���

 ���	��������	��� ����8������������.#
������ ����

)����!���(�,
��������/ �
&������������/�������*����� �5'B

)����!���(���
�!�������/ �������
��!������)����*�� ����

)����!���(��	��������6����� 6��
������������������������ '��

+���*����������(����
������&���2�*��� �
���������������
&������ �"B�

9�����	����!���
���� .!
��������������������
&������ '���

2�%����&�����
�� M.��������+�
���N����G��� ����
4�
�������&�)������
��!���@��!��(�����G��� M)��!������/����
��
�N����G��� '���

-�%������ 
��!���
��
������� ?��
���-��	������	
��	���
����������������� �
&���������)���������
!�� ����

�	��
�������������3� �
�������������������������	��� '���

(	���
�����
�
��
���	�
�
���� ��D��B+

&��� �	�
/
'	�

���!
�	�����
7����
��	���!
������
;�����
$�	�����

�������

1����	��
����
*������������!
;�����

36



����������	� $�	%
�� @
F�
�������

���������	��
��
� �
����������������������+��� ���

 �*��!���� 
�������-�%��������
��
� 2���������
����������� 5��

 ���	������+�*������
�������!�� �������&��������(�%������9�� B��

)����!���(������������/  �����7��
&������������	��� B��

)����!���(��	��2�*�� �
&���������6��
��������������� ����


��!�����!��� ��!���������D��.J���������������� ����
H
&�������
�������!���������������� �������.*�������������� ���
-�%�4
���� ���	��� ���(����������������� ����
���	��!���������
��
� ��!���������D��.*�������������� ���
�������@	���	����2�! ���%!�	����.*��� ���
�����'' M���/������/N�@��/�	��� ����

��!���)���� ���	��� �
����������� ����
�������!������� ���� �
��������������4�������� ����
���
�����D��+����4������������������� ������@�!!��������&������ ���

���9���������!���������������� ������@�!!��������&������ "��

�������0����
��
� �
����������� B��
�	��������� ������@�!!��������&������ ���

@��!���(��)��/E�
�������.�(��� ���������+��� '��
@��!���(��)��/E�4�����
�6���
���� ���������+��� '��
@��!���(��)��/E�����
���.�(��� ���������+��� '��
@��!���(��)��/E��
�������������� ���������+��� '��

�����������	�
����
���������

(	���
�����
�
��
���	�
�
���� ����2"�

37



����������	� �������!
7
���� �����

 ���	����2��&������
����������������� @��/������&���
�=�������������/ >�B

�	��/�'��	��/  ����������2�����1�����)�������� ���

 �+� 
�������������!��
��
� )������������!� >'�

�	��������D�������� ���	������+�*� 3�(���������������������/ "5�

���������0�
�	����G��� @��/������&���
��������!� "5�

O	���	�2
 �,�����
�����-��%��/ 6��
������1�*�������� ���

 �+�)�!���������(�1���&��!������� ������������������/ ����

��!�!�� ����	�����2�!�: ���	������	�����(� 1�������&���
��������!� "��

 ���	����
���4��D���	��
� )������������!� ���

�D�D+D

$���

*���
�
7�!
;�����
����

(	���
�����
�
����

38



A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te
m
 5
8
 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
 -
 2
0
1
2
 

 

Is
s
u
e
 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 &
  

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
/D
a
te
s
 

1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
  

 C
it
y
 P
la
n
 –
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

P
o
lic
y
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 (
E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t)
 

A
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 O
S
C
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

A
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 O
S
C
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

F
in
a
l 
L
A
A
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

D
u
a
l 
D
ia
g
n
o
s
is
 U
p
d
a
te
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

U
p
d
a
te
 f
ro
m
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 

C
T
E
O
S
C
 

C
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
d
 

1
3
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
  

 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 3
-y
e
a
r 
G
ra
n
ts
 

O
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
, 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 

In
te
lli
g
e
n
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

 

U
p
d
a
te
 f
ro
m
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 

C
Y
P
O
S
C
 

 
 

  

39



 
3
1
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
  

 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 
 

P
e
o
p
le
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 

 

C
it
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 

 
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

C
lim
a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
; 
 

 

 
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
; 

S
ta
ff
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

U
p
d
a
te
 f
ro
m
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
H
O
S
C
 

 
 

 

2
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
  

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

 

 
 

IC
T
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 
 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 P
o
rt
fo
lio
 

 
 

 

  

40



P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
It
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 O
S
C
 W
o
rk
 P
la
n
 

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
l 
U
p
d
a
te
 

In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 L
o
c
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 C
h
a
ir
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
fs
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 S
ta
ff
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

 

41



42


	Agenda
	52 Procedural Business
	53 Minutes of the meetings held on 1 November and 21 November 2011
	Item 53A Minutes of 21 November OSC call-in

	57 The Future for Discretionary Grants
	Item 57 Appendix 1 Vision Criteria  Practical Examples
	Item 57 Appendix 2 Grants Process for Decision Making
	Item 57 Appendix 3 Grant Commitments 2010-11  2011-12

	58 OSC Draft Work Plan

